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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The First Baptist Church is located at 212 Bedford Street in Cumberland, Maryland. It
is a T-shaped brick structure of 13stories. The 1917 east (front) facade is of white
glazed, all stretcher brickwork; this also extends back one bay on the north and south
facades. The rest of the building, constructed in 1849, is of red brick laid in common bond
with random variations; this has been repointed. The original part has two high brick belt
courses on each facade and a single Tow one on the side facades (although the north side is
covered by additions). On the east facade only the low belt course exists, where it is
executed in stone. ‘

The church sits on a low foundation of rock-faced, coursed ashlar on the north and
south and uncoursed rubble on the west (rear). It has a plain water table. The gable end
of the church faces front. The gable roof is covered with sheets of asphalt. A replace-
ment box cornice surrounds the 1849 structure. Two interior brick chimneys are located
in the west end. One is original with corbeled cap; the other is a replacement.

The principal (east) facade is a three-part composition divided vertically into nave
(on the south) and stair tower (on the northg; the latter is divided horizontally to
separate a basement from the tower above. This distinction is deliberately obscured on
the nave by containing the windows of those two floors within one large opening in the
wall. The stair tower wall is brought forward on this facade (in plan the tower comes
forward on the east and north elevations), resulting in three exposed corners on this

- elevation. Each corner is similarly buttressed on its two sides with a three-part
buttress, narrowing and set back from bottom to top. The set backs are at the first floor
and choir levels and are marked by stone shoulders or weatherings. The top and bottom
segments have inset round-arched panels. The choir level segments are terminated by -
molded concrete copings. The two buttresses which flank the stair tower have an additional
section with an applied pediment and another concrete coping (these are not set back).

The southernmost buttress is shorter than those on the facade. Its terminal coping turns
to rake against the south wall of the nave. The top copings of the facade buttresses are
continuous with the copings of their respective roofs.

The nave portion of the facade, wider than the stair tower, contains between the
buttresses a large gothic tracery window set in a brick arch topped by a stone arch
above the springing. The floor of the auditorium (first floor) is marked by a band of
three large quatrefoil panels between the upper and lower windows. The wall above the
arch is set with nine round-arched panels in a blind arcade which rises directly out of
the window arch and follows the raking of the gable. Above this is the coping of the
gable which breaks vertically near the point and then squares off to form a blunt peak.

The wal] of the stair tower is similarly composed above the basement, without the
quatrefoil or arched panels. The roof coping forms a simpie low gable,

The basement contains the main entrance, set in an arch like the window arches, with
a blind arcade of five arched panels above, The entrance has a double door of two six-
paneled leaves in a wooden frame. The two parts of the stair tower are separated by a
heavy window ledge, continuous with and set back from the weatherings of the buttresses.

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET #1.




- FHR-8-300A | : :
(11/78) AL II A //3
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR FOR THORS use oY , ,
HERITAGE CONSERVATION AND RECREATION SERVICE

RECEIVED

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES |1 enresen,
INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

The First Baptist Church
Allegany County
CONTINUATION SHEET Maryland ITEM NUMBER 7 PAGE |

(DESCRIPTION CONTINUED)

At basement level the south facade has a recessed frame coal chute at the rear; this
is now sealed. There are three basement windows with 4/4 71ight sash containing translucen
glass, wooden trim, and stone sills. A low brick belt course serves as lintel for these
windows. The rear entrance on this facade is recessed and has a flat brick arch, wooden
trim, and a two-panel door with one 1ight of translucent glass. The entrance near the
front has a four-panel door.

On the first floor of this facade are three round-arched stained glass windows with
two tall panels and a fixed half-round one above., These have stone sills, plain wooden
trim, and brick arches. The six illustrations in these windows are different from
.those on the north facade. There is also one small rectangular stained glass window with
wooden trim and brick sill. -

The west end has two basement windows of thick translucent glass, one with 56
lights and one with 69 and two larger movable panes; both have flat brick arches and
brick sills. The door in the north bay is a replacement and the transom is boarded
over. The first story has three window openings; the north one has been bricked in
but was identical to the south one, which {s like the windows on the south. The central
stained glass window is shorter and wider and has a gently pointed brick arch and a
brick sill. It is an alteration as the brickwork around it is disturbed.

The north facade has one closed up basement window with brick arch. At first story
level are three stained glass windows of similar form to those on the south but different
parts fixed and movable; they have brick arches, stone sills, and wooden trim. This
facade also has a small rectangular window 1ike that on the south; both swing in.

Two small additions are built against the north side of the church; they do not
disturb the appearance of the church.

On the interior of the church the stairs are located in the northeast corner. At
the basement level the main entrance opens into a hall facing the stair that leads to
the main worship area on the next floor. The basement is divided into a number of rooms
with walls and folding partitions.

The main floor is divided into a nave in the center, a Sunday School area divided
off with a folding wood partition in the east end, and organ, choir loft, and two small
rooms at the west end. The chancel area has an elliptical platform raised two steps
above the nave and divided from it by three pointed-arched openings with wooden pillars.
Behind these arched openings are the choir and organ lofts. The choir loft is slightly
raised above the chancel floor. A trap door in the chancel floor covers a baptismal
pool. The two rooms next to the chancel are preparation rooms. A closed stair leads
from them to the basement.

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET #2.
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(DESCRIPTION CONTINUED)

The nave ceiling is a flat plaster one with curved corners. The chancel ceiling is
a four-arched cross vault. Four wrought iron lamps with stained glass panels hang from
chains in the nave.

The open well statr that leads from the basement to the balcony at the east end of
the church has seven landings and six and a half flights. Made of walnut, it is not
decorated except for rectangular pendants., There {s wainscoting on the walls of the
stair.

Woodwork around the doors and windows is plain. The folding partition in the nave
has eight seven-panel doors. The double doors leading into the nave are identical to
these. The choir rail molding extends around the nave. A walnut paneled railing surround:
the organ and choir lofts. The face of the balcony is paneled, Architrave trim extends
around the top of the walls near the ceiling.

The pipe organ was bought and installed in 1921 and was recently renovated.
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(SIGNIFICANCE, continued) REVISIONS 9/29/80 Ronald Andrews

The significance of the First Baptist Church on Bedford Street
in Cumberland, Allegany County, Maryland is derived from the facade
that was added in 1917 to the existing church structure erected in 1849.
Executed in a modest interpretation of the Late Gothic Revival style,
the facade embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type of
architecture that, while popular in the United States in the first
half of the present century, was not commonly used in Cumberland.
The dominant features which characterize the First Baptist Church facade
are a smooth, quiet perpendicular design executed in masonry. The
position of this structure in the architectural fabric of Cumberland
is heightened by its location on a hill from which it is visible from
various locations in the center of the city.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE SIGNIFICANCE SEE Rg V/ !j I OV .
With it very stylishly gcogtrived Facade, the First Baptlist hurch is a_distinctive

structure the architeciufe 0j Cumberland. TheeTg nal 1849 buildingMas g nave of
the churgh on the secgrd floors 2 characteri compén to Baptist apd”Method st churches
of thefecond half ef the 13#h century, JAS interjr detail is als#0 common FO that

periof. The cops egation Mas had ups grC downs roughout itsMistory, witlf the congrega-
tionffluctuatifig from algost nonexisz€nt to verf large. Ths Zombination off large typical
19thCcentufy structure gfith up-1g fate facade ¢ modern fterials is illusPrative of the

cycles in the conarega jon' [stor

Y.
HISTORY AND SUPPORT

The history of the First Baptist Thurch in Cumberland has been one of fluctuating
fortune. During the last century, this church had its setbacks, but always managed to
overcome misfortune to prosper. The first record of Baptist meetings in this area was
in the 1840s, when a handful of persons met in a hall above a fire station, The first
missionary to come to these Bap%ists was Rey. Benjamin Gifffith, D.D., who Jater became
the first pastor of the church, ’

By 1849 Rev. Griffith had gathered enouga Baptists into his congregation to build a
church, which was dedicated in Noyember 1849.% This original brick building was larger
than it need be, according to Lowdermilk, who stgtes that the "seating capacity” was
much larger than the number of the congregation.

During the Civil War Cumberiand was used to house Union wounded, "Halls, churches,
and warehquses" were temporary hospttals where local physicians cared for the wounded
soldiers.” The soldiers hospitalized here numbered 500 in December of 1861 and 1,200

in the spring of 1862. Even after the large C1ar§sville hospital was opened, fifteen
different locations in Cumberiand housgd wounded.® Thomas and Williams state that the
First Baptist Church was one of these.

Shortly after the war, for some unknown reason, the council of the church met and
decided to disband the organization. It was reorganized in 1871. According to local
tradition, the'congregation was forced to pay for their land a second time due to an
error 1n7the first title. In 1878 Lowdermilk reporis of a congregation of seventy
persons.

In 1913 the Reyerend H.F. Loomis arrived to fi11 a one year vacancy at the pulpit
to find that much of the congregation had drifted away. Through his strenuous efforts
he rebuilt the congregation to 300 by 1923. At a cost of $15,000.00 a new front facade
to the cburch was erected and dedicated in January of 1917.8 Included in this facade
are architectural components that Join to create a balanced visual impact. The tracery
windows are the largest in the Cumberland area. The soaring height of these windows

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET #3.
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(SIGNIFICANCE CONTINUED)

js countered by the molded concrete trim highlighting the buttresses and entrance. The
arcaded effect of rows of pointed brick arches above the entrance and the larger window,
combined with the recessed position of the window and entrance, present a contrast
giving greater depth to the east facade. These Gothic Revival features and the
asymmetrical design of the facade are reminiscent of the cultural awareness of the past
members of the church.

Additional misfortunes include the murder of a missionary to China during disturbances
there, and the loss of the church's history, including the names of many of the pastors,
when the records were moved to Baltimore "for historical purposes.”

Today the church membership js still active and services continue despite the lack
of a minister. It is the determination of a congregation with a history of struggle
against misforuune that keeps this church a monument to the courage of the Baptist
people of Cumberland. The Gothic facade of this building symbolizes the strength of
these people "buttressed” by thier faith in God.

1 Will H. Lowdermilk,_ History of Cumberland (Baltimore: Regional Publishing Co., 1971),
p. 464. Reprint of the 1878 edition.

2 | owdermilk, p. 465.

3 Lowdermilk, p. 464.

4 Harry Stegmaier, Jr., Allegany County-A History (Parsons, W.va.: McClain Printing
Co., 1976), p. 187.

5 Ibid.

6 James W. Thomas and T.J.C. Williams, History of Allegany County, Maryland.
(Philadelphia: L.R. Titsworth and Co., 1923), p. 476.

7 Lowdermilk, p. 465.

8 Thomas and Williams, p. 477.

9

Lowdermilk, pp.465-6.
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